PORT SHELDON TOWNSHIP

16201 Port Sheldon Street, West Olive, Ml 49460
Telephone 616-399-6121 Fax 616-399-7173
www.portsheldontwp.org | info@portsheldontwp.org

BOARD MEETING

AGENDA
Wednesday - January 14, 2026
5:30 P.M.
Call to order
Roll Call
Pledge of allegiance
Invocation

Additions to Agenda
Approval of Agenda
Public Comment
Consent Agenda Approval
a. Approve Minutes — Regular Meeting, December 10, 2025*
b. Approve Financial Report
c. Approve Correspondence
d. Approve Committee Reports*
e. Approve payment of Bills
9. Presentation — Short-Term Rental Report*
10. Public Hearing — Parks and Rec 5 Year Plan
11. Consider — Adoption of Parks and Rec 5-year plan*
12. Consider — Cost adjustment to previous Road shoulder paving approval
13. Consider — Cemetery Fee Schedule Amendment — Add Winter Burial fee*
14. Consider — King Water Wells Estimate for Sheldon Dunes Well inspection*
15. Consider — Fire Department Budget Amendment
16. Additions to Agenda
17. Public Comment
18. Adjourn

N hkhwWN =

* Information included in packet

Next Meeting — February 11, 2026


http://www.portsheldontwp.org/
mailto:info@portsheldontwp.org

—

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the

Port Sheldon Township Board
December 10, 2025 — 5:30 P.M.

Call to order

2. Roll Call

(98)

N

10.

11.

12.

Present: Michael Sabatino, Meredith Hemmeke, Rachel Frantom, Luke DeVries and Bill Monhollon.
Absent: None
Also present: Attorney Ron Bultje, Fire Chief Brad Dirkse, Assistant Fire Chief Tom Prince, Jason
Latham from the MACC, and County Drain Commissioner Joe Bush.
Pledge of allegiance.
Invocation
Mike Sabatino offered the invocation.
Additions to Agenda: None
Approval of Agenda.
Motion by Monhollon to approve the agenda. Supported by DeVries and carried.
Public Comment: None
Consent Agenda Approval
a. Approve Minutes
1. 'November 12, 2025, Regular Meeting.
b. Approve Financial Report
c. Approve Correspondence: None
d. Approve Committee Reports
i. Building — Thirteen permits issued with two new home starts.
il. Fire Department — Thirty-three calls, plus two meetings.
iii. Supervisor Update- The Superyisor gave an update about township business, meeting
with Consumers Energy Rep regarding frequent power outages, met with the Park
Township Supervisor about bike path maintenance and an update pertaining to
subdivision street paving plans for 2026.
iv. Clerk Update- The clerk gave an update about the Fire Departments payroll schedule.
e. Approve payment of Bills
Motion by DeVries to approve the consent agenda. Supported by Frantom and carried.
Presentation- Macatawa Area Coordinating Council.
Jason Latham gave an update on the Value Report. More information is on the MACC’s website.
Consider- Planning Commission Approved Zoning Ordinance Amendment-Food Trucks
Motion by Monhollon accept the Planning commission’s recommended ordinance amendment
regarding Mobile Food Vending, with adjustments for clarity, and definition, as recommended by legal
counsel. Supported by DeVries and carried with five yes roll call votes. Ayes: Frantom, Hemmeke,
Sabatino, DeVries, and Monhollon. Nays: None.
Consider-Resolution to Amend Fee Schedule for Food Truck Permit
Motion by Sabatino to add a $350 annual fee and adopt Resolution 2025-22. Supported by DeVries
and carried with five yes roll call votes. Ayes: Monhollon, DeVries, Sabatino, Hemmeke and Frantom.
Nays: None.
Appointments- Planning Commission.
Motion by Monhollon to approve the Supervisor’s re-appointment of Steve Grilley, Patrick



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

Kelderhouse, and Lori Stump to the Planning Commission for a three-year term expiring January 1,
2029. Supported by Frantom and carried.
Appointments — Zoning Board of Appeals.
Motion by Frantom to re-appoint Steve Grilley and Luke Lal.one to the Zoning Board of Appeals for
three-year terms expiring January 1, 2029. Supported by Hemmeke and carried.
Appointments- Fire Commission
Motion by Hemmeke to re-appoint Tom VanVoorst to the Fire Commission with six-year term
expiring January 1, 2032. Supported by DeVries and carried.
Consider- Lake Michigan Safety Association Buoy Support Request.
No Action.
Review-Parks & Recreation 5 year draft plan.
Consider- Posting Parks & Recreation Plan for Public Review period December 11-January 9, 2026.
Motion by Frantom to post the DRAFT parks and recreation master plan for review and set public
hearing to be held'on Wednesday January 14", 2026 at 5:30pm. Supported by Hemmeke and carried.
Consider- Auxiliary Employees Wage Adjustment
Motion by DeVries to approve COLA increase of 2.5% COLA as of April 1, 2025 for a few auxiliary
employees that were not included in the yearly increase process. Supported by Monhollon and carried
with five yes roll call votes. Ayes: Frantom, Hemmeke, Sabatino, Monhollon, and DeVries. Nays:
None.
Additions to Agenda: None
Public Comment:
Public Comment was received from
e Joe Bush, Ottawa County Drain Commissioner.
e Brad Dirkse, Fire Chief
Adjourn
Motion by Monhollon to adjourn. Supported by DeVries and carried.
The meeting adjourned at 6:09 pm.
Respectfully Submitted
Meredith Hemmeke, Clerk



PORT SHELDON FIRE DEPARTMENT

December 2025 - 36 calls plus 2 meetings
Total for 2025 - 346 Calls

December

Medical - 17

Fire Alarm - 3
Cancelled Enroute - 2
Down Powerline - 2
Good Intent - 2

P.l. Accident - 2

Lift Assist -2
Controlled Burn- 1
Chimney Fire - 1
Building Fire - 1

CO Alarm -1

Gas Leak -1

Electrical Issue - 1



400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

PSFD Yearly Calls

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

e early Calls

2025 Calls By Month

H Calls



STRs In

It was an excellent year in PST for Short-Term
Rentals! With the passing of the STR
Ordinances, registration is required for
properties used for this purpose. All metrics
Indicate that the ordinance is functioning as
designed!

74 STRs

Registered
In 2025 No significant
season INncrease in STRs

from number
estimated in 2024

On all enforcements opened on
unregistered Short-Term Rentals.

12 total enforcements in 2025, 11 registered
with the township, and 1 decided not to rent.

200/ Number of rentals
o by occupancy:

of rentals 1-6 occupants: 16
have been 7-12 occupants: 38
iInspected

13-16 occupants: 16
and passed i

inspection in
the first year!

16 16

16201 Port Sheldon St.
West Olive, M| 49460

InNfo@portsheldontwp.org
616.399.6121




e Fillmore 81— | 4
L |.1' 4 I"-,_ w |
Tl : .

im y " 1

i P
rt-Sheldon St~

74
i
| o
_ ‘) Port Sheldon
. Three|Fires,Gi

(%]

B

ral‘Area . a. a
i = Temparar
z o

;
v e
|

"li
_,_!Eew ‘Holland St

s e
C}uincy P:!a!iji]

-N168th Ave

By '-I'IJDrQ'I.“I';‘t ~

_fluinl:y' Sty



Certificate Details By Type 01/06/2026
o
Short-Term Rental
Cett # Status Address Holder Issued Expires Ocar

CSTR240001  Certified 17134 LAKE AVE SABATINO MI 12/19/2024 01/01/2027 8
CSTR240002  Certified 7458 MARGARET AVE BARAGAR LIN 09/30/2024 01/01/2027 5
CSTR240004  Certified 17423 WOODLAWN AVE HEERING DOR 10/31/2024 01/01/2027 9
CSTR240006  Certified 17285 TRILLIUM RIDGE IMPENS ANNJ 11/11/2024 01/01/2027 12
CSTR240007  Certified 6965 HELENA ST SOETS B&B LL 11/14/2024 01/01/2027 13
CSTR240008  Certified 7709 MARGARET AVE COX LEASING 11/14/2024 01/01/2027 7
CSTR240011  Certified 7673 MARGARET AVE GRACIAS FELI 11/26/2024 01/01/2027 16
CSTR240013  Certifted 5558 BUTTERNUT DR SOMMER MAT 11/26/2024 01/01/2027 16
CSTR240014  Certified 8293 CROSWELL SHORE TR BASS ANDRE 11/26/2024 01/01/2027 9
CSTR240015  Certified 17437 MONTELLO AVE VANSOLKEMA 11/26,/2024 01/01/2027 9
CSTR240016  Certified 17030 LAKESHORE HILLSDR ~ GAJEWSKI AA 12/13/2024 01/01/2027 12
CSTR240021  Certified 7153 HELENA ST HEYNS DANIE 12/20/2024  01/01/2027 6
CSTR240022  Certified 5410 BUTTERNUT DR HOGG DIANE 12/31/2024 01/01/2027 8
CSTR250001  Certified 17330 SHELDON DUNES DR HEFFNER KEN 01/03/2025 01/01/2027 12
CSTR250002  Certified 8863 LAKESHORE DR GARVIN CARY 01/13/2025 01/01/2027 12
CSTR250003  Certified 6421 BROWTINE TRAIL SLUIS ROD-GR 01/24/2025 01/01/2027 3
CSTR250004  Certified 6419 WILDWOOD DR BALZER JERE 01/24/2025 01/01/2027 9
CSTR250005  Certified 17231 COLFAX ST HOOVER PHIL 01/31/2025 01/01/2027 16
CSTR250006  Certified 16659 ADLER DR R&R HIDEAW 02/04/2025 01/01/2027 16
CSTR250007  Certified 9135 LAKESHORE DR SKALSKI RAN 02/03/2025 01/01/2027 7
CSTR250009  Certified 5144 ROSABELLE BEACH VANDRIEL HE 02/04/2025 01/01/2027 8
CSTR250010  Certified 9523 WHISPERING SANDSDR ~ BURT INVEST 02/04/2025 01/01/2027 10
CSTR250011  Certified 9029 LAKESHORE DR PETERSON DA 02/05/2025 01/01/2027 8
CSTR250013  Certified 8317 CROSWELL SHORE TR 8317 CROSWE 02/18/2025 01/01/2027 6
CSTR250014  Certified 5865 LAKESHORE DR FREDRICKSO 02/18/2025  01/01/2027 6
CSTR250015  Certified 6780 HELENA ST SEIBERT JAME 02/18/2025 01/01/2027 13
CSTR250017  Certified 9481 WHISPERING SANDS DR~ MILLER JASO 02/20/2025 01/01/2027 4
CSTR250023  Certified 8691 WEST OLIVE RD LUBBERS BRI 03/18/2025 01/01/2027 12
CSTR250024  Certified 8408 OLIVE SHORE AVE DONNELLY MI 03/20/2025 01/01/2027 8
CSTR250025  Certified 6365 LAKESHORE DR DUDA 6365 LA 03/25/2025 01/01/2027 14
CSTR250027  Certified 7539 MARGARET AVE MILANOWSKI 03/28/2025 01/01/2027 6
CSTR250028  Certified 7577 MARGARET AVE VANDERMEY 04/02/2025 01/01/2027 6
CSTR250030  Certified 6971 HELENA ST SWANSON RA 04/21/2025 01/01/2027 6
CSTR250032  Certified 16020 STANTON ST COLE SCOTT-L 04/28/2025 01/01/2027 2
CSTR250033  Certfied 6400 LAKESHORE DR CULLEN JOHN 05/13/2025 01/01/2027 16
CSTR250034  Certified 17440 MONTELLO AVE TETRO MATT 05/28/2025 01/01/2027 9



CSTR250035
CSTR250036
CSTR250037
CSTR250040
CSTR250041
CSTR250042
CSTR250048
CSTR250051
CSTR250052
CSTR240005
CSTR240009
CSTR240010
CSTR240012
CSTR240017
CSTR240018
CSTR240019
CSTR240020
CSTR250012
CSTR250018
CSTR250019
CSTR250020
CSTR250021
CSTR250022
CSTR250026
CSTR250029
CSTR250031
CSTR250038
CSTR250039
CSTR250043
CSTR250044
CSTR250045
CSTR250046
CSTR250047
CSTR250049
CSTR250050
CSTR240003
CSTR250008
CSTR250016

Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Certified
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Expired
Closed
Closed
Closed

7178 BUTTERNUT DR

7136 BUTTERNUT DR

16050 STANTON ST

5555 LAKESHORE DR

16976 LAKE AVE

17325 OTTAWA TR

4811 LAKESHORE DR

6881 HELENA ST

8861 LAKESHORE DR

4985 ROSABELLE BEACH
17368 STANTON ST

6263 LAKESHORE DR

9410 WHISPERING SANDS DR
4990 ROSABELLE BEACH

9306 WHISPERING SANDS DR
5537 LAKESHORE DR

4805 ROSABELLE BEACH
16856 LAKE AVE

4955 ROSABELLE BEACH
17075 VAN BUREN ST

16521 VAN BUREN ST

17355 WHISPERING SANDS CT
17002 LAKE AVE

16275 CROSWELL ST

6900 FRONTIER DR

5468 164TH AVE

16050 WARREN DR

6340 BUTTERNUT DR

5159 COLTONS RUN

5507 LAKESHORE DR

7553 MARGARET AVE

6987 HELENA ST

16560 SHELDON SANDS CT PV
5149 ROSABELLE BEACH

6479 LAKESHORE DR

7506 MARGARET AVE

17381 OTTAWA TR

6881 HELENA ST

SAURBAUGH
SAURBAUGH
TALL TREES L
HAV2 GETAWA
NICHOLS BRA
KRAGT PREST
HOARD MICH
DASHNAW MA
ROWDEN DEV
THE ROSABEL
HOLTROP DEA
RAAR EUNICE
THE HEXAGO
WIERKS REBE
CARINI VICTO
CARINI CURT
CARINI CURT
MILLER LISA
VANSKIVER W
CORTESE CHR
OVERWAY BR
DUNN BRIAN
BERTOTTI MA
LAWSON JOH
GROSSO ANT
FORGE JASON
DEVRIES RYA
FORGE JASON
D'ORZIO TYLE
NH INVESTME
MILLERJTLL
DEUR PORT S
LAMER KURT
JUDEH MAEN-
OWENS RYAN
PRESTON AUD
MURPHY TOD
MILANI NICO

05/21/2025
05/21/2025
06/06/2025
06/26/2025
06/30/2025
06/30/2025
08/28/2025
08/27/2025
09/15/2025
10/30/2024
11/26/2024
11/26/2024
11/26/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
02/19/2025
03/03/2025
03/14/2025
03/17/2025
03/12/2025
03/12/2025
03/25/2025
04/10/2025
04/25/2025
06/10/2025
06/26/2025
07/15/2025
07/16/2025
07/14/2025
07/23/2025
07/23/2025
08/25/2025
09/11/2025
10/22/2024
02/17/2025
02/18/2025

01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2027
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026
01/05/2026
01/01/2026
01/01/2026

Totals Short-Term Rental Certifications

75



900-00T-€1-11-0L

STOT/ET/TI paAJOsY $207/81/11 38N TYOAT Y FAITO LSHM €T8L 770057
£10-00€-70-11-0L

§20T/91/60 paAjosay $T02/Z1/80 4sN TvOa T Md TAOHSTIVT 1988 700574
TH0-06€-12-11-0L

$207/92/30 paAjosaY STOT/S1/LO asn TvOaTTI AA TIOHSTIAVT 6419 L2005Td
PH0-00€-LT-11-0L

5202/50/80 paA[osaYy $20T/S1/L0 SN TVOATTL LD SANVS NOQTIHS 09591 9200573
800-67€-£€-11-0L

§20Z/9¢/80 Pan|osay $T0T/80/L0 SN TyOATIl  HOVAL 2113dVSOd 6V1S ¥20057d
$00-€F1-12-11-0L

$202/91/60 PaA[0sY $T0T/10/L0 48N TVDATII LS VNATAH $S1L €20057d
100-62€-91-11-0L

$T0T/S1/LO PoA[0STY $T0T/10/L0 asn TvoaTIl AV LIAVOUVIN €5SL 7200574
910-964-91-11-0L

$T0T/10/L0 paAjosay $T0T/YT/90 4N TVOIT1I AV VT 94691 610054
900-001-€€-11-0L

STOT/S1/LO poAjosaY $T0T/HT/90 asn Tvoa Tl ¥d AIOHSTNVT LOSS 8100574
£00-001-£€-11-0L

$T0T/10/L0 poAjosay $20T/vT/90 4sn TvoaT1l AA TIOHSTAVT 5556 £100sT3
TH0-001-LT-11-0L

$T0T/10/L0 poAjosaY $20T/¥T/90 asn TvoaT1l AA LANYALLNE 0F€9 91005749
620-002-LZ-11-0L

STOT/EL/SO uondY 10§ 3sNED ON $T0Z/€1/50 asn TvOa T 1S NOQTAHS LY¥0d 7100574
T20-001-TT-11-0L

$702/01/90 parjosay $T02/2T/P0 asn Tvoa 11l A LANYALLNE 9€12 60005273
120-001-22-1 1-0L

$202/01/90 poAjosay $70T/TT/H0 48N YOI A LNNYALLNG SLIL 8000574
010-00%-82-11-0L

520C/6T/v0 poAlosey $702/87/10 asn VoAl LS NTINE NVA SLOL €000574
620-001-20-11-0L

STOT/F1/10 paA[osay $TOT/LO/0 SN TVOIT1I LS NOLNV.LS £88S1 1000524

Paso) ae(] e UONIY IXAN uondYy IXIN snjess POl Meq Liod3e) 3quIn N JaquinN

[92a8] /SSIPPY JUIIOJUTY

ST0T/1E/T1

)STT JUSWIIOFUT




Nd 65-65-11
STOT/1E/TL ANV WV 00-00-C1 STOT/1/1 usamisg ps[lf=1Bg jususdiojuy

ANV SN TVYOITII = A108s1e) juswadiojusg

splooy ||V :uonejndog
9] :SpI023Y

paso) dje(q ¥ UOHOV IXIN uordIY JXaIN snjels PalLg e Ki03ae) JIquInN Jaquiny
[3248 ] /SSaIppV JUIUINIOJUY

€0T/1E/T1

JSIT JUSWIdI0J U]




Inspection List

Addtess Parcel Number Inspection Type Scheduled Completed Result
7673 MARGARET AVE 70-11-16-176-011 Short-Term Rental 04/16/2025 04/17/2025 Complied
17134 LAKE AVE 70-11-16-463-013 Short-Term Rental 04/16/2025 04/17/2025 Complied
17285 TRILLIUM RIDGE 70-11-21-150-008 Short-Term Rental 04/17/2025 04/17/2025 Complied
5558 BUTTERNUT DR 70-11-34-200-046 Shott-Term Rental 04/21,/2025 04/21/2025 Complied
9029 LAKESHORE DR 70-11-04-300-046 Short-Term Rental 04/22/2025 04/22/2025 Locked Out
8317 CROSWELL SHORE TR 70-11-09-300-051 Short-Term Rental 04/22/2025 04/22/2025 Locked Out
5865 LAKESHORE DR 70-11-28-300-008 Short-Term Rental 04/22/2025 04/22/2025 Locked Out
6881 HELENA ST 70-11-21-196-001 Short-Term Rental 04/22/2025 04/22/2025 Locked Out
17423 WOODLAWN AVE 70-11-16-390-003 Short-Term Rental 05/09/2025 05/09/2025 Complied
168560 LAKE AVE 70-11-16-496-008 Short-Term Rental 05/14/2025 05/14/2025 Complied
7709 MARGARET AVE 70-11-16-176-008 Shott-Term Rental 05/14/2025 05/14/2025 Complied
8317 CROSWELL SHORE TR 70-11-09-300-051 Short-Term Rental  05/19/2025 05/20/2025 Complied
5865 LAKESHORE DR 70-11-28-300-008 Short-Term Rental 05/19/2025 05/20/2025 Complied
0029 LAKESHORE DR 70-11-04-300-046 Shott-Term Rental 05/23,/2025 05/28/2025 Comptlied
6881 HELENA ST 70-11-21-196-001 Short-Term Rental — 05/23 /2025 05/28/2025 Complied
7153 HELENA ST 70-11-21-143-005 Short-Term Rental 10/01/2025 10/02/2025 Complied
17330 SHELDON DUNES DR 70-11-04-178-017 Short-Term Rental 10/02/2025 10/02/2025 Complied
6780 HELENA ST 70-11-21-197-015 Short-Term Rental 10/02/2025 10/06/2025 Violation(s)
5537 LAKESHORE DR 70-11-33-100-005 Short-Term Rental 10/10/2025 10/13/2025 Complied
4805 ROSABELLE BEACH 70-11-33-349-031 Short-Term Rental  10/10/2025 10/13/2025 Complied

Inspections: 20

Population: All Records

Tnspection.Inspectionlype = Short-Term Rental AND
Inspection.DateTimeCompleted Between 1/1/2025 12:00:00 AM AND 12/31/2025 11:59:59 M



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

DRAFT

Port Sheldon Township
Parks and Recreation Master Plan
2026-2031




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Prepared by:

Port Sheldon Township Board:
Mike Sabatino, Supervisor
Meredith Hemmeke, Clerk
Rachel Frantom, Treasurer

Luke DeVries, Trustee
Bill Monhollon, Trustee

Planning Commission:
Steve Grilley, Chair
Patrick Kelderhouse, Vice-Chair
Bill Monhollon, Twp Board Representative
Lori Stump, Secretary
Delwyn Petroelje
David Deleeuw
Nicole Timmer

Parks & Recreation Committee:
Mike Sabatino
Ben Mannies
Ben Randle
Don Sheill
Melissa Steenwyk
Jeff Balgoyen
Kim Gallup
Donna Kober

Prepared with assistance from:

Prein&Newho!

Engineers=Surveyorss Environmental = Lahoratory



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Table of Contents

Executive SUMMArY ...ccciiiiiiieniiiiieeenneeeeeeenccecesscncceccsnnnes 4
INErodUCTION «ouveiiiii e 4
Community Description....c.cceiiiiiiiniiieeeeeeieeeeeennceecessnnnnns 4
oot L o1 4
GEOGIAPNY: et e 4
Water RESOUICES: t.uuiintiiiniiiiiiiit ittt iiiit it eieesineeeneens 5
I T o J 60T o PP 5
Wildlife Habitat: ..oo.evieiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 5
1 ] 0] Y N 5
DT aaTe) 4T o] | [t PPN 6
Administrative Structure ........cceceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinin, 7
[0 - L[] 01 411 0 L PPN 7
Parks Budget and FUNAING .....coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i eeiieeeneeeeenees 8
ReSOUIrCe INVENLOIY ..ciiiiiiiiiinennnniiiieeereeecceeeesesssasssscncncnns 9
Recreation INVENLOrY ......ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i ettt eaeaaes 9
Grant INVENTONY «iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieteteeeeeeennnnneeeeeeeeeeesesnnnnnnsnseeseeens 9
Planning ProCess ..ccceeeeeeieieeeeeennnnreeeeeeeeececeeescssssnsnnnnnes 18
(0] ol 13T o] U | PPN 18
Survey SUMmMary RESULLS ...cvuviiiiiiiiiiiiii e s 18
Goals/Objectives/ACtionsS.....cccieiiiieeiiiiiienntieeiiennssecssnnnnss 20
APPENAiX A..erriiiiiiiiiiiiiiieietetetteetectecttttssanssnsnnnnnnns 1
Supplemental DNR Attachments .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieas 1



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Executive Summary

Introduction

The purpose of this document, Port Sheldon Township Parks & Recreation five-year plan, is
intended to serve as a guide for present and future recreational resource development within the
township, including park land, park facilities, recreational programs, and public open spaces. It
advocates land acquisition and park development based on a survey of township residents,
population and housing trends, and a strategic analysis of recreation needs and opportunities.

To be effective as a guidance tool, it must be kept current, considering population shifts,
development of new projects, and changing attitudes towards leisure activities.

Short-term goals, such as maintenance issues and small recreation facility improvements can be
implemented quite easily with minimal costs. Long-term expansions/construction will require
additional study and involvement of residents to work out the site-specific details. This plan is to
serve as a guideline for the operation and maintenance of existing and future facilities and
programs to meet the recreational needs of the Township citizen’s and to protect important
environmental features for future generations. The plan summarizes long-term recommendations
intended to guide the development of recreation opportunities within the Township and describes
an action and financial program to implement improvements during the next five years.

Meeting the goals in this plan or revisiting the priorities as conditions change and/or funding
opportunities arise will help in grant solicitation from the Michigan Department of Natural
Resources (MDNR).

Community Description

Location:

Port Sheldon Township is located in Ottawa County within the central west part of Michigan's
Lower Peninsula. The Township’s Western boundary is formed by Lake Michigan, with Olive
Township to the East, Grand Haven Township to the North, and Park Township to the South. The
total land area of the township encompasses 24 square miles.

Geography:

U.S. 31, a North-South highway cutting across the Northeast corner of Port Sheldon Township,
connects the Township to the City of Holland and interstate I-196 to the South, and the cities of
Grand Haven and Muskegon to the North. [-196 provides a link to the Greater Grand Rapids area
and also links with 1-94 to the South that eventually terminates at Chicago. Major East-West travel
is by M-45, 2 miles North of Port Sheldon Township. Within the Township, Lake Shore Drive and
Butternut Drive are designated as primary roads by the Ottawa County Road Commission and
provide North-South travel along the Lakeshore. Primary East-West roads include Croswell Street
and Port Sheldon Road.



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Water Resources:

The Pigeon River runs through Port Sheldon and discharges
into Pigeon Lake, which empties into Lake Michigan through a
channel protected by two piers. The Michigan Department of
Natural Resources maintains public access on the north side of
the lake to facilitate recreational activities on Pigeon Lake and
Lake Michigan. Consumers Energy’s JH Campbell power plant
draws water from Pigeon Lake for cooling purposes and
discharges it into Lake Michigan.

Land Cover:

The township consists primarily of forested, agricultural,
commercial, and industrial land. Forested areas, mostly
privately owned, are concentrated near the township's center. i _
Agricultural land, also privately held, is largely situated along Kouw Park
the outskirts. There is a limited amount of commercial
development, mainly located along Butternut Drive, while
private industrial land is scattered, with concentrations
primarily along the north side of Pigeon Lake and along
Pigeon Creek.

Wildlife Habitat:

There is a wide variety of wildlife species that inhabit the
township. Numerous songbirds and other non-game wildlife
are present along with whitetail deer, Eastern Wild Turkeys,
small game animals and game birds. A diversity of habitats,
combined with a clean environment, is critical to the wildlife
in the township. The wildlife in the Township provides many Community Park
recreational opportunities including fishing, bird watching,
photography and nature study.

History:

In 1835, Eastern investors formed the Port Sheldon Land
Company, buying 600 acres to build a city near Pigeon Creek,
but the settlement collapsed despite early developments. By
the 1930s, the area became known for growing strawberries,
raspberries, and blueberries, and agriculture remains central
to the township today. Social and economic life once revolved
around the depot, post office, and general stores, with trains
transporting goods and passengers. Port Sheldon officially
became a township on April 7, 1924, after breaking away from Kouw Park
Olive Township due to concerns about fair representation. In




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

1964, the Fire Department was established and took full responsibility for township protection by
1966, continuing its service to this day.

Demographics:

When planning for recreational needs, one of the most important components is to understand the
demographics and the social make-up of the community. The Township’s demographic data has
been compared to Olive Township and Ottawa County to provide a broader picture of the social
characteristics. The information below was gathered using the 2023 United States Census Bureau,
and it should also be noted that the Census data does account for people visiting or residing in the
Township during the summer months.

Population: The Township’s population has been steadily increasing over the past few decades. As
the population increases, so will the need for recreational facilities for both residents and tourists.

Jurisdiction 2010 2020 2023

Port Sheldon Township 4,240 5,040 5,334
Olive Township 4,375 5,007 5,081
Ottawa County 263,801 296,200 303,372

Age: The Township has a good distribution of ages, with a decent amount of people in each

category. Knowing the spread of age groups is important for creating recreational opportunities
that can serve everyone.

Port Sheldon Olive Ottawa
Age Township % Township % County %
Under 18 years 1,280 24.0% 1,169 23.0% 69,776 23.0%
18to 64 2,987 56.0% 3,353 66.0%( 182,023 60.0%
65 years and over 1,067 20.0% 508 10.0% 51,573 17.0%

Disabled Persons: If park and recreation facilities are not barrier free, many of these residents will
be limited in participating in recreational activities.

Port Sheldon Olive Ottawa
Population Township % Township % County %
Disabled Persons 293 5.5% 224 4.4% 20,023 6.6%




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Administrative Structure

The Township Supervisor administers Port Sheldon Township’s
Park and Recreation System. The Township Board determines
policy, budgets and improvements with advice from the
Recreation Committee. The Committee was enabled under the
“Recreation and Playgrounds Act, Public Act 156 of 1917” and is
currently comprised of seven Port Sheldon Township citizens
who are appointed by the Township Board.

There is also a Bike Path Committee to oversee the management Windsnest Park

and development of the Township’s bike path/trail system. The
Township currently contracts the maintenance of park facilities
to private landscape and maintenance companies.

The following diagram illustrates the organizational structure of
the Township and relationships between the staff, Township
Board and Recreation Committee:

Community Park

Township Board

Township
Staff

Bike Path Planning Recreation

Committee Commission Committee

Maintenance
Contractors

Relationships

Relationships with Other Agencies

The Township does not currently work with any local groups or agencies but would consider a
partnership should the possibility arise.

Volunteers

The Township is always looking for new volunteer partners to help in any capacity possible.



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan

Parks Budget and Funding

Parks & Recreation Annual Budget

GL NUMBER
Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION

DESCRIPTION

2024-25
AMENDED
BUDGET

2025-26
AMENDED
BUDGET

101-751-702.10

SALARY-KOUW PARK CUSTODIAN CONTRACT

101-751-702.20

SALARY - WINDSNEST CUSTOD

101-751-702.30 SALARY- TOWNSHIP HALL GROUNDS CUSTODIAN 1,125.00 3,000.00
101-751-702.40 SALARY - RECREATION COMM 1,000.00
101-751-702.50 SALARY - WN GUARD

101-751-702.60 ROAD END MAINT 1,000.00
101-751-727.10 SUPPLIES KOUW

101-751-727.20 SUPPLIES WN

101-751-727.30 TOWNHALL SUPPLIES

101-751-727.40 SUMMERFEST 14,000.00 10,000.00
101-751-801.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES

101-751-801.20 CONSULTANTS 10,000.00
101-751-831.10 GROUNDS UPKEEP - KP

101-751-831.30 GROUNDS UPKEEP - TH 15,000.00 15,000.00
101-751-831.70 GROUNDS UPKEEP

101-751-851.10 DATA SERVICES - KOUW 3,050.00 1,500.00
101-751-851.20 DATA SERVICES - WN 2,100.00 2,100.00
101-751-852.00 LAKE RESOURCES-BUOY/SIGNAGE/ETC 500.00 500.00
101-751-861.00 EXPENSES & MILEAGE

101-751-880.00 R.E.A.C.H 1,500.00 1,500.00
101-751-880.10 EVERGREEN COMMONS

101-751-880.20 RED CROSS

101-751-880.30 HOLLAND /PK/GR HAVEN REC 2,000.00 2,000.00
101-751-881.00 PARKING PERMIT DISCOUNT 5,000.00 5,000.00
101-751-921.10 UTILITIES KOUW 1,250.00 1,250.00
101-751-921.20 UTILITIES WN 1,250.00 1,600.00
101-751-921.30 UTILITIES VDB

101-751-931.10 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE KOUW 2,500.00 2,500.00
101-751-931.20 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE WN 5,000.00 2,500.00
101-751-931.30 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE TH 6,000.00 6,000.00
101-751-931.40 SHELDON LANDING PARK 1,000.00 1,000.00
101-751-942.00 PORTAJON 1,500.00 1,500.00
101-751-955.10 MISCELLANEOUS KOUW PARK

101-751-955.20 MISCELLANEOUS WN PARK

101-751-955.30 MISCELLANEOUS TH

101-751-955.40 ROAD END MISC.

101-751-960.70 MISCELLANEOUS 5,000.00 5,000.00
101-751-961.00 WEED CONTROL 60,000.00 60,000.00
101-751-970.30 CAPITAL OUTLAY RECREATION 150,000.00 20,000.00
Totals for dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION 279,775.00 | 151,950.00

2026-2031




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Resource Inventory

Recreation Inventory

Port Sheldon Township is concerned with providing
recreational opportunities to all Township residents. Nearby
entities such Olive Township, Ottawa County, and the State of
Michigan also provide recreational facilities and programs to
residents in the surrounding area. Port Sheldon Township and
their consultant, Prein & Newhof, conducted a tour of the parks
to evaluate current conditions and talk through potential future
improvements. The parks have also been evaluated for
accessibility using the accessibility assessment criteria set forth
by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources.

Community Recreation Planning

Recreation plays an increasingly important role in a family's
decision to move to a community. Recreational facilities not
only offer entertainment but also provide younger residents
with opportunities for constructive leisure. The Township
features eight park properties—four of which are developed
with amenities, while the remaining four consist of
undeveloped woodlands. Additionally, one public school in the
area includes recreational facilities. The Township also hosts
annual community events, such as Summerfest, which includes
a car show and a picnic.

Grant Inventory Community Park

Port Sheldon Township has been awarded just one DNR grant for the renovation of Windsnest Park
back in 2016. Windsnest Park now serves as a trailhead for kayakers along the Grand River to
Pigeon Lake section of the Lake Michigan Water Trail.

GRANT ASSISTED PARKS
PROJECT GRANT
PROJECT # PARK NAME VEAR DESCRIPTION STATUS

Improvements include restrooms, parking, pavilion,
#TF16-0216 Windsnest Park 2016 playground, overlook, kayak storage racks, water Closed
trail map, charging stations and amenities.




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Overall Township Parks & Recreation Inventory Map

| f
i

Zwemer; #érk

i
|

Oli_\{le Shores

i
|

HiawathalProperity,

B "Jh‘
Windsnest quk}.

NRBoatlaunch il sheigoniifanding

Port Sheldon\Community Park
; Port/Sheldon|Naturall/Areal ¥

\/

Van|BureniStreet Dunes

\/

Kouw/Park VanBuren|St!

Legend
' Port Sheldon Township Park / Property

v Regional Park / Property
D Township Boundary

10



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Kouw Park

Size: 3.72 acres

Location: 5591 Lakeshore Drive, Holland

Description: Kouw Park is located on two hundred feet of Lake Michigan beachfront at the end of
Van Buren Street. The park features improved facilities including picnic shelter, play equipment,
restrooms and parking.

=Ty

Address: 5599 Lakeshore Ave, Holland, Ml 49424

11



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Windsnest Park

Size: 4.0 acres

Location: 7905 Margaret Avenue, West Olive

Description: This four acre park with almost 600’ of frontage on the Lake Michigan shoreline
underwent a complete renovation in 2019. Improvements include new play equipment, restrooms,
picnic shelter and parking. The boardwalk and play structure feature beautifully designed handicap
accessible features.

176:019 .

"

'Address: 7905 Margaret Avenue, West Olive, MI 49460

12



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Port Sheldon Community Park

Size: 3.7 acres

Location: Next to Port Sheldon Township Hall

Description: The park and township hall offer indoor and outdoor facilities. Indoor facilities
include a gymnasium/multi-purpose room, a kitchen and public restroom. These indoor facilities
are available on a rental basis only. Outdoor facilities include a softball diamond, tennis courts,
basketball courts, pickle ball courts, picnic shelter and play equipment (updated spring 2024),
seating areas and parking.

13



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Sheldon Landing

Size: 7 acres
Location: North side of the Pigeon River on Crab Drive, just east of Lake Shore Drive.

Description: This area includes the street right-of-way in which the road has been unused, along
with a strip of woods between the river and the right-of-way. The park has three land boat launches
enabling sportsmen/sportswomen access to the Pigeon River.

Sheldon Landlng

Address Crab Dr West Ollve Mi 49460

14



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Township Owned Parks

Accessibility

Acres Rating

Amenities

Paved parking, designated barrier free parking
spaces, restrooms, playground, accessible

K Park* Public Park 7
ouw Far LA 3 3 walkway routes, barrier free picnic tables. No
ADA beach access
Playground, grills and picnic tables, beach,
Windsnest Park* Public Park 4.0 4 restrooms, access pathways are ADA accessible,

no ADA beach access

Port Sheldon Community Community

Picnic shelter, restrooms, no ADA access

3.7 2 pathways to pickleball courts, tennis courts,
Park Park .
ar ar playground, and baseball field
Shelden Lndig Public Park 70 1 Gravel road entrance and turn around, picnic

table and bench, porta potty for restrooms

* = Contracted Ottawa County Parks Department to manage the park

Accessibility Scores:

1 = None of the facilities/ park areas meet accessibility guidelines
2 = Some of the facilities/ park areas meet accessibility guidelines
3 = Most of the facilities/ park areas meet accessibility guidelines
4 = The entire park meets accessibility guidelines

5 = The entire park was developed/renovated using the principals of universal design

Other Township Owned Properties

Description
Vanburen Street 40.2 Undeveloped woodland
Hiawatha Property 39.9 Undeveloped. Utility easement through property
Port Sheldon Cemetery 2.8 Paved access, maintained grass
Stanton St. Property 38.3 Undeveloped woodland
Zwemer Park 3.52 Undeveloped woodland
Township Property May Street 1.88 Easement property for a lift station

15




DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Regional Facilities within Port Sheldon Township

Pigeon Lake Public Access - DNR: Approx. 2.7 Acres located West of Lakeshore Drive, opposite
the Township’s Sheldon Landing. This popular facility includes a hard-surface ramp, 63 parking
spaces and a rustic bathroom. The parking frequently overflows onto the street on summer
weekends.

Hemlock Crossings - Ottawa County: Offers 239 acres of woods and wetlands along the Pigeon
River in Port Sheldon Township just West of US 31 on West Olive Road. A pedestrian bridge and
numerous overlooks offer scenic views of the river corridor, wetlands, natural springs and woods.
Facilities include two small picnic shelters, a kayak/canoe launch, over a mile of paved trail and
over 6 miles of trails for hiking and cross-country skiing. Trails connect to Pine Bend County Park
on the West end of the property.

Port Sheldon Natural Area - Ottawa County: Port Sheldon Natural Area is 440 acres including
gently rolling terrain, woods, wildlife, ponds, and Ten Hagen Creek. The park is very rustic, with
limited parking and no restroom facilities.

VanBuren Street Dunes - Ottawa County: 120 acres of low open dunes and pine plantations
open for firearm and bow hunting.

Olive Shores - Ottawa County: This mostly wooded 20-acre site includes a mature beech-maple-
hemlock forest, a steep dune formation, and 738’ of Lake Michigan frontage. Improvements
completed in 2012 include a paved parking area, modern restrooms, a barrier-free trail loop, and an
extensive series of stairs and boardwalks traversing the dune and providing access to the sandy
beach. Decks provide seating and views of Lake Michigan.

School Facilities within Port Sheldon Township

Sheldon Woods Elementary: Offers local recreation facilities and program opportunities. West
Ottawa Middle School and High School complex are in neighboring Park Township

Private Recreation within Port Sheldon Township
Wuskowhan Players Club: Members only club with 18 holes

Regional Recreation Facilities in Neighboring Townships

Pigeon Creek Park - Ottawa County: Pigeon Creek Park is 282 acres with another 130 adjacent
acres of County Open Space land. Over ten miles of ski trails wind through old pine plantations,
mature deciduous forests and through bottomland forests along the Pigeon River (off-trail
snowshoeing is allowed).

16



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Kirk Park - Ottawa County: Stretching along Lake Michigan'’s shoreline for over 1/3 mile, this
park boasts 68 acres of sandy beach, high bluffs and wooded dunes. Nature trails with wooden
stairways wind through the wooded dunes, offering spectacular views of Lake Michigan. A paved
path leads to a deck overlooking the beach and Lake Michigan. This is a popular park for swimming,
sunbathing, picnicking and cross-country skiing.

Tunnel Park - Ottawa County: Along the shoreline of Lake Michigan, this popular 22 acre park s a
great place for swimming, sunbathing and picnicking. In addition to the unique tunnel through a
dune, this park has a children’s playground complete with a dune climb and a stairway with scenic
views of Lake Michigan.

Riley Trails - Ottawa County: 300 acres of rolling terrain, beech-maple forest, pine plantations, a
small lake and an extensive trail system located in Park Township. The property is enjoyed by
hikers, cross-country skiers, mountain bikers and other outdoor enthusiasts. Riley Trails includes
40 acres that was formerly the Southwest Ottawa County Landfill. The landfill cap is closed to the
public to protect the cap from damage and because of potentially harmful methane gas venting
through the pipes. Since the landfill has been closed and capped for several decades, the gas levels
are significantly reduced. The landfill area remains closed to the public, however, until gas
emissions are studied and determined to be at safe levels. In the future, the Parks hopes to open the
hill to the public for trails, overlooks and sledding.

Rosy Mound Natural Area - Ottawa County: A classic Great Lakes dune system including high
wooded dunes, foredunes, beach and a dune blowout. A 0.7 mile hiking trail from the parking area
to the Lake Michigan shoreline includes 1,000 feet of stairs up and down the dunes and scenic
views. A unique shade canopy, dune boardwalk trail and rustic toilets are located near the beach.

Holland State Park - Ottawa County: Known for sugar sand beaches, beautiful sunsets and views
of the iconic "Big Red" lighthouse. The park is home to two large campgrounds, an accessible
playground, opportunities for paddling and fishing, and connections to nonmotorized trails. The
state park consists of separate Lake Macatawa and Lake Michigan units on the northern side of the
channel connecting Lake Macatawa with Lake Michigan. A boating access site with a fish cleaning
station is located 1 mile east of the park.

Private Recreation in Neighboring Townships

Geneva Camp and Retreat Center: Private church camp off Lake Shore Drive on Lake Michigan.

Camp Blodgett: Cabins, recreation center, hall, sleeping rooms on Lakeshore Drive, West Olive.
Provides children’s camp programs and is available for groups for special events.

Dutch Treat Campgrounds & Recreation: RV and tent camping with swimming pool and other
recreational facilities.

Oak Grove Campground & Resort: Family RV resort with 135 sites, rental cabins, swimming pool
and playground.

17



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Golf Courses in Neighboring Townships

West Ottawa Gold Course: 27 hole public golf course and practice range
American Dunes Gold Course: 18 hole public golf course near Lake Michigan
Pigeon Creek Golf Course: 18 hole public golf course and practice range

Macatawa Legends: 18 hole private golf club and practice range

Planning Process

Public Input

Port Sheldon Township values the opinions and views of its residents and helped develop the
following process to gather the community’s thoughts by:

e The consultant, Prein & Newhof, worked with the Parks and Recreation Committee along with
township officials over the course of several months via phone, email, Zoom, and face to face
meetings.

e Making digital and hard copies of the survey available to all residents that asks specific questions of
the current parks and their goals for the future.

The next steps in the Parks and Recreation Masterplan process involve:

e Making the Draft Plan available to the public for 30 days to provide the community with a chance to
review and offer comments.

e A public hearing will be held prior to adopting the park plan on 1/14/2026 during the township
board meeting.

Survey Summary Results

There was a total of 58 responses to the survey. The survey results show that 91% of respondents
support investing in improvements to the current parks and trails system while 74% support
investing in new properties to expand the parks and trails system. 74% of respondents are in favor
of a small millage to help support the parks system, commenters noted that they would support a
millage for additional trails and park maintenance. 53% of respondents are in favor of establishing
park fees to help fund the parks system, additional comments note that they might support fees for
non-township residents or preferred annual “Pay to Use” passes.

(Q2) Top 5 most visited parks in the area

e Windsnest Park

e Hemlock Crossing

e Kouw Park

e Port Sheldon Community Park
e  Olive Shores

18



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

(Q5) Top 3 most desired park properties to be improved or expanded:

e  Windsnest Park
e Kouw Park
e Port Sheldon Community Park

(Q10) Respondents believe parks and recreation funding should be focused on, in order:

1. Maintaining Existing Park Facilities

Existing Park Improvements

Expanding The Local Trail Network

Land Acquisition for New Parks & Open Spaces

B W

(Q11) When asked about what they liked about the existing recreation facilities, respondents noted:

e The trail system.
e Variety and quantity of nearby parks
e Overall park/trail cleanliness.

(Q12) When asked to provide concerns over the existing recreation facilities, respondents noted:

e The overcrowding of parks (Windsnest).
e The need for additional bike paths.
e Some bike paths are in need of maintenance/replacement.

(Q13) Top 3 organizations utilized for indoor/outdoor recreation:

e County Parks System
e Port Sheldon Parks and Recreation
e Michigan State Parks

(Q15) Top 5 reasons for visiting parks and trails:

e Natural Setting

e  Quiet/ Peacefull

e (lose to Home

e Health, Exercise, and Well-Being
e Safe

(Q16) Top 5 desired recreational opportunities respondents would participate in:

e Non-Motorized Multi-Purpose Trails.
e Paved Multi-Purpose Trails.

e Outdoor Water Recreation

e Playgrounds

e Picnic Areas

19



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

(Q17) Top 3 improvements respondents think are most needed:

e Additional Multi-Purpose Trails
e Additional Paved Parking Areas
e Additional Restrooms

(Q18) When asked to provide comments on future community programming, the top responses
were:

e  Music venue.
e Nature based educational sessions for children.
e Community park cleanup events.

(Q20) When asked for additional thoughts regarding the parks and recreation facilities, the top
responses focused on:

e Improved trail network (specifically Stanton St. W of 31)
o Safety could be improved for the trails and beaches.
e  Prioritize park and trail maintenance.

The survey results also show that:

¢ (Q1) A majority of respondents have lived within the Township for 0-5 years (28%)

e (Q19) The best way to reach people for parks and recreation updates is by email/ newsletter (43%)
e (Q21) Most of the respondents were between ages 55-74 (49%)

e (Q22) Only 40% have a child under the age of 18 in their household.

Goals/Objectives/Actions

The information received from the public survey was analyzed to identify the goals and objectives
of the local community.

Goal 1: continue to expand and improve existing park facilities and lands to optimize
existing opportunities for the residents.

Objectives/Actions:

e Continue to improve and develop Windsnest Park.
e Improve and develop Zwemer Park as a Passive Park.

e Inassociation with Ottawa County, develop a trail system from Hemlock Crossing along the Pigeon
River to Sheldon Landing.

e Improve and renovate the aging facilities of Port Sheldon Community Park.

e Examine Kouw Park for parking lot improvements.

20



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Goal 2: provide a variety of facilities within each park to service all age groups and provide
activities to fulfill diverse recreational needs for people of all abilities.

Objectives/Actions:

e Renovate and install new playgrounds in line with current safety standards, providing more diverse
play opportunities.

e Enhance existing facilities to meet or exceed barrier free requirements.

e Provide a wider range of active and passive recreational facilities and strive to reduce known
deficiencies.

e Acquiring new property to address geographical and specific facility deficiencies.

Goal 3: Provide a geographically balanced park system to ensure recreation facilities are in
close proximity to all residents and to keep pace with the needs of the community.

Objectives/Actions:

e Targetlocation specific acquisition of land to ensure a good geographical distribution of recreational
facilities.

e Develop recreation facilities on existing park land owned by the Township.

e Acquire new land for future recreation opportunities.

e Provide connections between existing parks and natural /recreational facilities.

Goal 4: provide year-round recreational facilities that will meet the present and future
needs of the community.
Objectives/Actions:

e Expand opportunities for passive recreation and un-programmed activities such as picnic facilities,
walking trails, fishing and wildlife viewing.

e Connecting Hemlock Crossing and Sheldon Landing.

e Allow Township Hall ggymnasium to be used at specific times.

Goal 5: utilize corridors, drainage easements, and service areas for open space,
recreational and trail uses.

Objectives/Actions:

e Support Ottawa County’s goals and objectives to create a walking trail along the Pigeon River
connecting Hemlock crossing and Sheldon Landing.
e Continue to work with Ottawa County to connect park land.

Goal 6: strive to connect recreational facilities to schools, residential areas, and to each
other with non-motorized trail systems.

Objectives/Actions:

e Continue to develop the Township’s trail system both on and off road.

21



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Goal 7: promote and maintain relationships with Ottawa County, neighboring townships and
private entities to enhance recreational opportunities.
Objectives/Actions:

e Complement the recreational opportunities provided at the Ottawa County Parks.

e Maintain a strong relationship with Consumer’s Energy to ensure the long-term license and lease
agreements at Windsnest Park and Sheldon Landing.

e Expand opportunities with Consumer’s Energy to provide high quality park and recreation facilities.

e Continue communication with neighboring Townships to collaborate on recreational opportunities.

Goal 8: Preserve important natural features such as streams, wetlands, wooded areas, and
major wildlife habitat.

Objectives/Actions:

e Implement “Best Management Practices” on Township owned property adjacent to wetlands and
watercourses to improve the water quality.

e Develop management/maintenance strategies for natural areas owned by the Township.

e Design parks to encourage appropriate use and minimum impact on important natural features.

Goal 9: continue to maintain and enhance existing parks and facilities in the township.

Objectives/Actions:

e Upgrade existing facilities to exceed accessibility standards.
e Maintain current park amenities to ensure safety and security for the residents.

Goal 10: Acquire property as it becomes available to ensure that recreational
opportunities keep pace with the needs of the community.

Objectives/Actions:

e Acquire and develop waterfront access sites.

22



APPENDICES



DRAFT Port Sheldon Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2026-2031

Appendix A

Supplemental DNR Attachments

Survey Results
Public Notices
Public Meeting Minutes

Formal Resolution to Adopt the Plan

A1



Proposed CEMETERY PRICES AND FEES

SCHEDULE A

Effective

A. Prices for Burial Rights.

1.

Grave Site for Marker Site

Grave Site for Monument Site
Columbarium Site

Cemetery Ordinance, Section 4.D.

Grave Site Babyland Area

Cremains Space for Resident
Cemetery Ordinance, Section 4.D.

B. Fees for Services

Transfer of Burial Right

Renewal of Burial Right
Repurchase of Burial Right
Foundation for monument or marker
Foundation for Columbarium
Cremains Disinterment

Winter Internment

a. Monday — Friday before 4:00 p.m.

b. Monday — Friday after 4:00 p.m.
c. Saturdays before 4:00 p.m.

Cremains Burial:

a. Monday — Friday before 4:00 p.m.

b. Monday — Friday after 4:00 p.m.
c. Saturdays before 4:00 p.m.

Resident Non-Resident

$385.00 $1100.00
$605.00 $1320.00
$1500.00 $3000.00

$220.00

$165.00 $440.00

Resident/Non-Resident
$55.00

$55.00

$100.00

$.45 square inch
$.45 square inch
$250.00
$250.00

$500.00
$500.00

$125.00
$250.00
$250.00



Ki
King Water Wells
10634 14 Mile Road NE | Rockford, MI 49341

844-52-WATER (616)835-9355 | kingwaterwells@gmail.com | Kingwaterwells.com

RECIPIENT: Quote #6517

Ottawa County Road Commission Sent on Dec 28, 2025
14110 Lakeshore Drive
Grand Haven, Ml 49417 Total $5,450.00

SERVICE ADDRESS:

17287 Rolling Dunes Drive
West Olive, Michigan 49460

Product/Service Description Qty.  Unit Price Total

Job Notes Scope of Workin Conjunction with Vern Billings with 1 $0.00 $0.00
Dewind Well Services.
Pull and inspect components of Well #3.
Recommended and included in quote but optional are
a bench test for pump and motor and video
inspection. Both listed at end of quote. Last item not
included in quote if to complete yearly simple flow
test. This service in included in the overall quote but
noted as a 1-off service for future testing.

Based on previous protocol, Recommend flow testing
first to get baseline data, then pull and inspect
components, perform downhole video inspection.
Then make determination if screen cleaning and
redevelopment is needed. Finally, reset, chlorinate
and complete final pump testing. Any redevelopment
if needed can be quoted.

Provided Information:

Well 3’s specific capacity was calculated to be 4.86
gallons per minute per foot of drawdown (gpm/ft) in
the current testing, while results from its installation in
2016 indicate a value of 5.2 gpm/ft. This
demonstrates that the productivity of Well 3 has
declined somewhat over time.

Crane Crane and or Commercial Pump Hoist 1 $500.00 $500.00
Comm./Ind./Irr. Labor Labor and Trip for Commercial/Industrial/Commercial 16 $250.00 $4,000.00
Work

Pull and reset pumping equipment and perform
pumping tests in accordance with previous work
(approx. 5-10min pump tests based on drawdown
level stabilization and static water level recovery).

Optional
Pump and Motor Bench Bench Test of Pump and Motor for Electrical Integrity 1 $200.00 $200.00
Testing and Pump Performance to Factory Curve (if
known).

Data provided for future reference.

1 of 2 pages



AL King water Wells

10634 14 Mile Road NE | Rockford, MI 49341
844-52-WATER (616)835-9355 | kingwaterwells@gmail.com | Kingwaterwells.com

Product/Service Description Qty.  Unit Price Total
Optional

Video Inspection under Downhole camera inspection. Can assess casing and 1 $750.00 $750.00
200’ screen condition. Must let well water settle 24hrs
after pulling pump so completed next day.

Data file provided to be referenced for future work.

Not included

Yearly Flow Testing Based on Previous Work, Simple approx 10min 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
pumping test for yearly data from fire hydrant for
each well. Labor and Office time to compile data.

Disclaimer 1. King WW is not responsible for the condition of 1 $0.00 $0.00
landscaping including mess from drilling or digging,
lawn damage etc.

2. Any variations in this work order are subject to
additional charges. King WW is not responsible for
well placement for unidentified/unmarked
contamination sources, property lines or

boundaries.

3. Not responsible for anything damaged due to
drilling or trenching.

4. King WW does not guarantee water pressure past
well system or water quality. Issues with
contaminants such as smells, nitrates, tannin, VOC,
PFAS, etc. will require additional charges. As part of
the well completion process your well has been
chlorinated.

5. Flowing wells, and unproductive well, dry hole,
require additional charges.

6. Payment due after well is OPERATIONAL, not
upon final approval from the Health Department.
Payment due 30 days from invoice date, customer
will pay KWW attorney fees if KWW has to take legal
action to recoup payment.

7. Warranty void if not paid on time and in full.

8. A 3% fee for all credit/debit card payments.
Additional Fees for financing.

9. Dry hole, uncased drilling, etc. has base charge of
$1500 min. up to 50', $25/ft up to 200'. $30/ft up to
300'. Pricing increases over 300" based on project. If
cased, grouted or screened pricing increased for
product used.

10. Emergency/urgent replacement wells/work
should be paid in full at time of service, this
superceeds any payment dating/net days on
invoicing.

Total $5,450.00

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to change.

2 of 2 pages



	Board Agenda- January 14, 2026.pdf
	BOARD MEETING
	AGENDA
	Wednesday – January 14, 2026


	12.10.25 Minutes-DRAFT.pdf
	Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the
	Port Sheldon Township Board
	December 10, 2025 – 5:30 P.M.


	FD Report December.pdf
	Screenshot 2025-12-18 123021
	STR Infographic (3)
	STR reports
	2025_12_2 DRAFT Port Sheldon Twp 5yr Parks and Rec Master Plan 2026.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Introduction

	Community Description
	Location:
	Geography:
	Water Resources:
	Land Cover:
	Wildlife Habitat:
	History:
	Demographics:

	Administrative Structure
	Relationships
	Relationships with Other Agencies
	Volunteers

	Parks Budget and Funding
	Parks & Recreation Annual Budget


	Resource Inventory
	Recreation Inventory
	Community Recreation Planning

	Grant Inventory
	Overall Township Parks & Recreation Inventory Map
	Kouw Park
	Windsnest Park
	Port Sheldon Community Park
	Sheldon Landing
	Township Owned Parks
	Other Township Owned Properties
	Regional Facilities within Port Sheldon Township
	School Facilities within Port Sheldon Township
	Private Recreation within Port Sheldon Township
	Regional Recreation Facilities in Neighboring Townships
	Private Recreation in Neighboring Townships
	Golf Courses in Neighboring Townships


	Planning Process
	Public Input
	Survey Summary Results

	Goals/Objectives/Actions
	Appendix A
	Supplemental DNR Attachments
	Survey Results
	Public Notices
	Public Meeting Minutes
	Formal Resolution to Adopt the Plan



	Cemetery Pricing-Proposed pricing January 14th meeting.pdf
	King Water Wells_quote 6517_12-28-2025.pdf



